
BPW 3-22-16 Page 1 
 
 

 
The Board of Public Works meeting was held on Tuesday, March 
22, 2016 at 5:30 pm in the Council Chambers of City Hall at 
Showers, 401 N. Morton Street, Bloomington, Indiana with Kyla 
Cox Deckard presiding. 

 REGULAR 
MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF 
PUBLIC WORKS 

   
Present:           Kyla Cox Deckard 
                        Kelly Boatman 

Melanie Castillo-Cullather 
                                                                                                              
City Staff:      Rick Alexander – Planning and Transportation 

Jason Carnes– Economic and Sustainable  
Christina Smith – Public Works    
Matt Smethurst – Planning and Transportation 
Adam Wason – Public Works  
 

 ROLL CALL 

   
Cox Deckard thanked everyone for postponing the previous 
meeting due to a family illness. 

 MESSAGES FROM 
BOARD MEMBERS 

   
Cox Deckard made a motion to approve the minutes. Castillo-
Cullather seconded the motion. The motion passed. The minutes 
from February 23, 2016 were approved with changes made. 

 APPROVAL OF 
MINUTES  - 
February 23, 2016 

   
None  PETITIONS & 

REMONSTRANCES 
   
None  BIDS ANDS 

QUOTES 
   
None   
  TITLE  VI 

ENFORCEMENT 
   
  NEW BUSINESS 
   
Rick Alexander with Planning and Transportation explained that 
the organizers of this 5K run are requesting the use of city streets 
and sidewalks for their event which begins and ends at Sherwood 
Oaks Christian Church off of S. Sare Road. It is scheduled to 
begin at 9:00 am and end by noon. They anticipate between 100 
and 200 participants. The route is the same as the one used in 
several previous years for the Hoosiers Care 5k. Bloomington 
Police did not require a parade permit; however, a police officer 
will control traffic for the start of the run as runners leave the 
church grounds. Volunteers will be stationed at corners to insure 
runner safety. A map of the route was included in the packet.  The 
run, under another name (Hoosiers Care 5K), has been successful 
in the past using the same route. Staff recommends approval. 
 
Cox Deckard asked if there are any other runs occurring on the 
same day. 
 
Alexander responded no.  
 
Castillo- Cullather asked if this is for the organization’s 
anniversary or if there was another race. 
 
Alexander explained that they use to run this race under a different 
name, but it is the same route and same director in charge. 
 
Castillo-Cullather made a motion to approve Resolution of 2016-
08: Use of public streets for Catalyst 5K Run (Saturday, 4/30). 

 Resolution 2016-08:  
Use of Public Streets 
for Catalyst 5K Run 
(Saturday, 4/30) 



BPW 3-22-16 Page 2 
 
 

Cox Deckard seconded the motion. The motion passed.  
Resolution 2016-08 approved. 
   
Alexander explained that planners for the 4th Street Festival of the 
Arts and Crafts wishes to request the closure of Fourth, Grant and 
Dunn Streets Friday, September 2nd through Sunday, September 
4th for this year’s 40th annual festival which will be September 3rd 
and 4th, 2016. This year’s festival will utilize the same street 
layout as last year.  This festival is the single largest arts event in 
the city with tens of thousands of attendees. It serves as the 
opening act to the fall arts and cultural season in Bloomington and 
brings many visitors downtown to patronize restaurants and retail. 
Staff recommends approval.   
 
Dawn Adams of the 4th Street Festival Committee provided details 
on various events that will be a part of the festival. 
 
Boatman asked if there will be designated parking. 
 
Adams explained they use public parking and that an arrangement 
with the university to use their lots for exhibits. 
 
Boatman asked if they have run into any issues. 
 
Adams replied no. 
 
Castillo-Cullather asked if the layout of the event will remain the 
same or if there is anything new. 
 
Adams explained that exhibitors will be on 4th street. An 
entertainment stage will be on the south end and not for profits 
will be on the north end on Grant.  A spoken words stage will be 
on the south end and new events will be on the north end, with a 
focus on the visual arts on Dunn. 
 
Cox Deckard asked if they have recently begun using Dunn. 
 
Adams said they have used it for about five (5) years now because 
it has become more of a regional show with a larger attendance. 
 
Boatman made a motion to approve Resolution of 2016-18: Use of 
public streets for 4th Street Arts Festival of The Arts & Crafts 
(Friday, 9/2 – Sunday, 9/4)). Castillo-Cullather seconded the 
motion. The motion passed.  Resolution 2016-18 approved. 

 Resolution 2016-18:  
Use of Public Streets 
for 4th Street Arts 
Festival of The Arts 
& Crafts (Friday, 9/2 
– Sunday, 9/4) 

   
Alexander explained the Bloomington Playwrights had recently 
purchased their building at 107 West 9th Street. They have also 
launched a fundraising campaign called The Future Fund that will 
be earmarked as a sustainability fund. They would like to hold a 
donor reception on April 1st and are asking that West 9th be closed 
from North Walnut Street west to the west side of their building 
where the north/south alley runs. They have asked for the street 
closure to run from 5:00 pm to 7:30 pm on April 1st. Their 
building is the only one in this block facing 9th.  Leaving West 9th 
open from the north/south alley west will allow access for their 
neighbors that face either Walnut or College. West 9th is a one-
way street going west, and would be barricaded at Walnut with no 
other traffic control needed. Staff recommends approval. 

Chad Rabinovitz, event organizer, explained that they have yet to 
finalize the purchase of the building but are hoping to close within 
a week. 
 
Cox Deckard asked what the plans are for the event in the street 
area. 

 Resolution 2016-19:  
Use of Public Street 
for Bloomington 
Playwrights Project 
Donor Reception 
(Friday, 4/1) 



BPW 3-22-16 Page 3 
 
 

 
Rabinovitz responded that it serves as more of an overflow for the 
reception to ensure safety for their guests and to abide by building 
occupancy codes.  
 
Castillo- Cullather asked if they will be providing their own 
barricades. 
 
Rabinovitz confirmed that they will. 
 
Cox Deckard asked if the event is open to the public or only to 
donors. 
 
Rabinovitz responded that it is open to their patrons. 
 
Castillo-Cullather asked if it is by invitation. 
 
Rabinovitz stated yes, but bring your friends. 
 
Castillo- Cullather raised concerns of student housing joining in 
on the party. 
 
Rabinovitz explained that it will not be that kind of party to attract 
students and alcohol would not be permitted outside anyways. 
 
Cox Deckard asked if there is a backup plan in the case of rain. 
 
Rabonivitz stated that there isn’t a backup plan, but they are 
prepared to deal with rain if it occurs. 
 
Castillo-Cullather made a motion to approve Resolution of 2016-
19: Use of public street for Bloomington Playwrights Project 
Donor Reception (Friday, 4/1) Boatman seconded the motion. The 
motion passed.  Resolution 2016-19 approved. 
   

Alexander explained that Saturday, June 18th, 2016 will be the 36th 
year for the Arts Fair on the Square.  It is the same day as the Taste 
of Bloomington, and the two events along with the Saturday 
Farmers Market make for a major summer tourism event. Festival 
organizers are requesting closure of both Kirkwood Avenue and 6th 
Street between College Avenue and Walnut Street from 5:30 am to 
7:00 pm on Saturday, June 18th, 2016; and three parking spaces on 
College Avenue and three parking spaces on Walnut Street adjacent 
to the Monroe County Court House from 2:00 pm on Friday, June 
17th, 2016 to 8:00 am on Monday, June 20th, 2016 for the site set-
up, booth prep and loading/unloading of vendor merchandise. A 
noise permit is also requested as part of this event. CFC has been 
notified about the requested closures.  They are the same plans as 
last year. Staff recommends approval.  

Cox Deckard asked how long Bloomington Playwrights has 
coordinated this event. 
 
Rabinovitz stated that this is the 5th year after taking it over from 
the Bloomington Arts Council.  
 
Boatman asked if CFC owns all the properties involved. 
 
Wason stated that CFC only own the WICS building on 6th but the 
others are private owners. 
 
Rabinovitz explained they have gone around to all of the 
businesses and have come up with a plan that is mutually 
beneficial to everyone. The event does not provide food so not to 

 
 
 

 
Resolution 2016-22:  
Use of Public Streets 
and Parking Spaces 
for the Arts Fair on 
the Square (Saturday, 
6/18) 



BPW 3-22-16 Page 4 
 
 

detract from businesses, Taste of Bloomington and the Farmers 
Market. 
 
Cox Deckard asked if there is a fee for participants. 
 
Rabinovitz stated there is an application fee to participate and a 
booth fee that covers all the expenses of the event. This isn’t a 
moneymaking event, but more of a method of exposure for the 
organization. 
 
Boatman made a motion to approve Resolution of 2016-22: Use of 
public streets and parking spaces for Arts Fair on the Square 
(Saturday, 6/18) Castillo-Cullather seconded the motion. The 
motion passed.  Resolution 2016-22 approved. 
 
   
Alexander explained that the IU Student Foundation is requesting 
the use of city streets for their 5K and 10K running races on 
Saturday, April 2, 2016. The races will start at 17th and Fee and 
will end at Bill Armstrong Stadium. Traffic control will begin at 
8:30 am with a race start time of 9:00 am and end at 11:00 am. 
IUPD officers will handle the event’s traffic control.  

Castillo-Cullather asked how many runners they expect to have. 

Tyler Murtlow, event organizer, stated they are expecting 400 to 
500 runners and walkers. They allot 20 minute miles for walkers 
and 15 minute miles for runners. 

Cox Deckard asked who they take registrations from and where 
the profits go. 

Murtlow said it’s open to everyone. Funds raised go to the IU 
Foundation. 

Boatman asked if there are any other races that day. 

Cox Deckard and Murtlow both stated there is a race for the 
YMCA the same day on the south side of town. 

Cox Deckard asked how long they have been running the race. 

Murtlow explained this is the second year they are holding the 5k. 
They previously ran an indoor relay race, but are now doing the 
10k for the first time this year. They did not experience any issues 
last year and are doing everything the same for the most part and 
applying it to the 10k. 

Boatman commented the race is mostly on campus streets as 
opposed to city streets. 

Castillo-Cullather made a motion to approve Resolution of 2016-
20: Use of Public Streets for Little 500 5K and 10K Races 
(Saturday, 4/2). Boatman seconded the motion. The motion 
passed.  Resolution 2016-20 approved. 

 Resolution 2016-20:  
Use of Public Streets 
for Little 500 5K and 
10K Races 
(Saturday, 4/2) 

   
Jason Carnes explains that Ahmad Naderi has applied for a Mobile 
Vendor License.  It has been determined that when the applicant 
wants to operate in the right of way that before the permit is 
issued, permission must be obtained from the Board of Public 
Works.  The Department of Economic & Sustainable 
Development has reviewed the application and the Board of Public 
Works’ approval to operate in the public right of way is one of the 
items on the check list that is required before a permit can be 
issued.  ESD will confirm that all rules and regulations have been 
met prior to a permit being issued.  

 Resolution 2016-24:  
Allow Mobile Vendor 
to Operate in the 
Public Right of Way 
(Ahmad Naderi-
Doner Kabob) 



BPW 3-22-16 Page 5 
 
 

 
The business will operate from a food truck selling gyros. This 
application is for 1 year. 
 
Ahmad Naderi, with the Doner Kabob, gave a brief background 
and history of his business. 
 
Castillo-Cullather asked if the fire inspection is applicable as he 
will not have an open flame in the truck. 
 
Naderi explained he checked with the fire department who 
confirmed that as long as there is no flame, he does not need a fire 
inspection. 
 
Castillo-Cullather asked where he will operate. 
 
Naderi explained he is looking to operate around the downtown 
area later at night for 5 to 6 hours.  
 
Cox Deckard asked if he was able to receive certification and 
information needed from the health department. 
 
Carnes said he has a letter from the health department but will 
obtain an actual copy of the certification. 
 
Boatman made a motion to approve Resolution 2016-24:  Allow 
Mobile Vendor to Operate in the Public Right of Way (Ahmad 
Naderi-Doner Kabob). Castillo-Cullather seconded the motion. 
The motion passed.  Resolution 2016-24 approved. 
   
Carnes explained that David White has applied for a Mobile 
Vendor License.  White had previously held a Mobile vendor 
License but did not need one for the past year as he operated 
outside of the city limits but is now looking to return to the city 
and in the public right of way. It has been determined that when 
the applicant wants to operate in the right of way that before the 
permit is issued, permission must be obtained from the Board of 
Public Works.  The Department of Economic & Sustainable 
Development has reviewed the application and the Board of Public 
Works’ approval to operate in the public right of way is one of the 
items on the check list that is required before a permit can be 
issued.  ESD will confirm that all rules and regulations have been 
met prior to a permit being issued. The business will operate from 
a food trailer selling various styles of BBQ 
 
Carnes explained on March 7th David received 30 day Mobile 
Vendor License to operate on private property.  Later he decided 
that he would like to try operating in the public right-of-way.  
Today’s request of the BPW is to allow him to operate in the 
public right-of-way during the remainder of the term of his 
license, which expires on April 6th, 2016. Carnes explains he is 
asking for permission to operate in the public right of way for the 
duration of the private property license he already has as opposed 
to a full 30 days.  Staff recommends approval. Carnes introduces 
David White to the Board. 
 
White explained that he did have a public property Mobile Vendor 
License, however they rarely operated on public property outside 
of Food Truck Friday, Lotus Fest and other major festivals. They 
got the private property license because they are moving into 108 
S Rogers. He is looking to set up near Atlas Bar while work is 
being done. White explained that he will need to return for an 
extension on the permit for an uncertain amount of time.  
 

 Resolution 2016-25:  
Allow Mobile Vendor 
to Renew License to 
Operate in the Public 
Right of Way (David 
White-Great White 
Smoke) 



BPW 3-22-16 Page 6 
 
 

Castillo-Cullather asked for clarification that this is not a typical 
food truck, but a trailer based on the picture. 
 
White confirmed. He says their operation relies on countertops and 
chaffing dish space and use large smokers, and don’t need a hood. 
The grills keep things warm as well which is why they have steam 
tables. 
 
Boatman asked if patrons walk onto the platform on the back of 
the trailer or do they get served from the side. 
 
White explained they move their smokers to the side to attract 
people to that area. He says that is the reason the location on 
College would work well for them. The window was on a 
particular side based on a previous location on Dunn street to 
avoid being blocked by the Big Cheese. White refers to pictures to 
explain smoker placement, and says they are mostly just for show, 
not needed if safety is a concern as they have alternative methods 
for keeping food warm. 
 
Cox Deckard asked if he will have the large window facing the 
sidewalk east. 
 
White explained that the patrons will not have to leave the grass 
median next to the sidewalk. 
 
Cox Deckard asked if they will prepare food on location and about 
health department involvement. 
 
White says no. They don’t prep food. Everything is bought and 
goes straight onto foil pans on the grill. The Health Department 
will check for chemical storage, handwashing needs, and storage 
temperatures. 
 
Castillo-Cullather made a motion to approve Resolution 2016-25:  
Allow Mobile Vendor to Renew License to Operate in the Public 
Right of Way (David White-Great White Smoke). Boatman 
seconded the motion. The motion passed.  Resolution 2016-25 
approved 

 
  

Carnes explains that Jackie White has applied to renew her Mobile 
Vendor License. It has been determined that when the applicant 
wants to operate in the right of way that before the permit is 
issued, permission must be obtained from the Board of Public 
Works.  The Department of Economic & Sustainable 
Development has reviewed the application and the Board of Public 
Works’ approval to operate in the public right of way is one of the 
items on the check list that is required before a permit can be 
issued.  Carnes says that since the Board received their packets, 
Carnes obtained the fire department permit and the application is 
in order. ESD will confirm that all rules and regulations have been 
met prior to a permit being issued. The business will operate from 
a food truck selling home style food. This application is for 1 year. 
Staff recommends approval. 

Boatman asked if she is only going to operate on private property 
despite applying for a license to operate in the right-of-way. 

Carnes explains that she does primarily plan to only operate on 
private property and on festivals, and is only seeking to obtain a 
permit in case she does need to operate in the right of way. White 
does plan to participate in Food Truck Friday at the new location.  

 Resolution 2016-26:  
Allow Mobile Vendor 
to Renew License to 
Operate in the Public 
Right of Way (Jackie 
White-Gypsy Moon) 



BPW 3-22-16 Page 7 
 
 

Boatman made a motion to approve Resolution 2016-24:  Allow 
Mobile Vendor to Operate in the Public Right of Way (Ahmad 
Naderi-Doner Kabob). Castillo-Cullather seconded the motion. 
The motion passed.  Resolution 2016-24 approved. 

   

Carnes explained that Stephen Schroeder has applied for a 
Pushcart License for the first time.  It has been determined that 
when the applicant wants to operate in the right of way that before 
the permit is issued, permission must be obtained from the Board 
of Public Works. ESD will confirm that all rules and regulations 
have been met prior to a permit being issued. The business will 
operate from a pushcart selling ice cream, sorbet bars, pops, cups, 
etc. This application is for 1 year.  
 
Boatman asked where he plans to operate.  
 
Stephen Schroeder, with Zeitgeist Organic Creamery, explained he 
is looking mostly at the downtown area, the farmer’s market, and 
festivals. The IU Campus is off-limits unless a vendor is invited. 
 
Cox Deckard confirmed that everything is prepackaged. 
 
Schroeder said he builds his business model based on simplicity 
and works with the health department to ensure consumer safety. 
Everything is packaged, sealed and labeled. 
 
Castillo-Cullather asked how he plans to transport the cart. 
 
Schroeder has a van that fits in any parking spot. 
 
Castillo-Cullather made a motion to approve Resolution 2016-27:  
Allow Pushcart Vendor to Operate in the Public Right of Way 
(Stephen Schroeder-Zeitgeist Organic Creamery). Boatman 
seconded the motion. The motion passed.  Resolution 2016-27 
approved. 

 Resolution 2016-27:  
Allow Pushcart 
Vendor to Operate in 
the Public Right of 
Way (Stephen 
Schroeder-Zeitgeist 
Organic Creamery) 

 
  

Christina Smith of Public Works explained that Parks and 
Recreation Department is requesting noise permits for their Concert 
Performance Series, Movie Series and other special events in 2016.  
In your packet is a list of all of the events covered under this request. 
They request a noise permit for the entire series which will include 
bands, instruments and speakers with amplified noise. These are 
great community events that are free and open to the general public 
and staff recommends approval.  

Cox Deckard commented that the concerts are at Peoples’ Park, 
Bryan Park, the Waldron, and Yappy Hours at the Ferguson Park. 

Wason noted that this includes the Taste of Bloomington and other 
larger events as well. 

Boatman asked if there is a series event on the Courthouse Square. 

Wason and Boatman confirmed one event on May 5th. 

Boatman made a motion to approve Request for Noise Permit 
from City Parks and Recreation Department for 2016 Park Event 
Series (Tuesday, 5/3 – Saturday, 12/10). Castillo-Cullather 
seconded the motion. The motion passed.  Noise permit approved. 

  
Request for Noise 
Permit from City 
Parks and 
Recreation 
Department for 2016 
Park Event Series 
(Tuesday, 5/3 – 
Saturday, 12/10) 

 
  



BPW 3-22-16 Page 8 
 
 

Smith explained that Dale Siefker wishes to hold a rally on the 
sidewalk in front of 421 S. College on Saturday, April 23rd from 
8:30 am – 11:00 am and utilize amplified sound. He cannot block 
pedestrian use of the sidewalk. He has held many rallies, and no 
complaints have been received by his protests in the past.  Staff 
recommends approval. 

Boatman asked how many people are involved in the rally. 

Wason said most are in the 5-10 range. Some are around 30-40 
people. He expects this to be in the 5-10 range. 

Boatman asked if the rally is on the sidewalk, will they still allow 
foot traffic on the sidewalk. 

Wason said yes. 

Castillo-Cullather informed that there will be individuals speaking 
on the dignity of human life and information on the nature of their 
protest rally. 

Castillo-Cullather made a motion to approve the Request for Noise 
Permit for a Protest Rally at 421 S. College Avenue (Saturday, 
4/23). Boatman seconded the motion. The motion passed. Noise 
permit approved. 

  
Request for Noise 
Permit for a Protest 
Rally at 421 S. 
College Avenue 
(Saturday, 4/23) 

Smith explained the 12th Annual B-Town AIDS Walk is set for 
Friday, April 22nd on the B-Line Trail.  The family festival will be 
located in the private parking lot at 3rd Street and College Avenue 
directly across from the Monroe County Convention Center 
starting at 5:30 pm The walk will begin at 8:00 pm from the 
parking lot to the B-Line Trail, north on the trail until Adams 
Street, then turn around and walk the same route back to the 
parking lot.  Parks Department has issued a permit for use of the 
B-Line Trail.  As there will be music and announcements during 
the event, a noise permit is requested. There is no registration fee 
to participate in the walk, although donations will be accepted.  
Proceeds benefit IU Health Positive Link. This has been a popular 
event with no previous issues. Staff recommends approval. 

Cox Deckard mentions that they will be crossing in a safe area and 
there should be no safety issues. 

Boatman made a motion to approve the Request for Noise Permit 
for 2016 Bloomington AIDS Walk Light the Night Festival 
(Friday, 4/22). Castillo-Cullather seconded the motion. The 
motion passed.  Noise permit approved. 

  
Request for Noise 
Permit for 2016 
Bloomington AIDS 
Walk Light the Night 
Festival (Friday, 
4/22)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Adam Wason explained that a review of the 2016 Asphalt Bids 
has been conducted to determine the most responsible and 
responsive action to be recommended based upon the past usage of 
asphalt materials by the City of Bloomington Department of 
Public Works. Staff recommends awarding the primary bid to 
Milestone Contractors for 2016. Staff also recommends in the 
event Milestone Contractors are unable to provide service that we 
award the secondary bid to E&B Paving, Inc. for 2016. 

Wason explained the reasoning behind having a backup option 
selected, especially with the construction of I-69. 

Boatman asked if both companies are located in Bloomington. 

  
Award Bituminous 
(Asphalt) Materials 
Contract 
 



BPW 3-22-16 Page 9 
 
 

Wason explained Milestone is located in Green County near the 
new 445 exit on I-69. E&B Paving is located just outside of the City 
limits. 

Cox Deckard asked if the primary can’t produce materials in a 
timely manner, should staff then recommend the secondary 
provider. 

Wason says that timeliness would be a factor in selecting the 
secondary provider over the primary provider. However staff does 
not foresee this being an issue in this case. 

Castillo-Cullather made a motion to Award Bituminous (Asphalt) 
Materials Contract. Boatman seconded the motion. The motion 
passed.  Contract award approved. 

 
  

Wason explains that a review of the 2016 Concrete Bids has been 
conducted to determine the most responsible and responsive action 
to be recommended based upon the past usage of concrete 
materials by the City of Bloomington Department of Public 
Works. There was one bid made by Irving Materials Incorporated. 
They were our main provider last year. The price this year is 
slightly higher than last year. He is satisfied with the bid price. 
This is for four products including Concrete Class A at $ 101.50 
per cubic yard, Concrete Class A w/2% Calcium at $ 108.50 per 
cubic yard, Concrete Class A w/Reinforcement at $ 108.50 per 
cubic yard, and a Minimum Load Fee of $ 100.00 (Less than 3 
yards). Staff recommends awarding the bid to Irving Materials 
Incorporated for 2016 and are satisfied with the bid numbers that 
came through. 

Boatman asked why no other bids were received for this project. 

Wason says IMI is the primary provider for the county and region. 
Prairie was another provider. However, they were purchased by 
IMI. 

Boatman made a motion to Award Class ‘A’ Portland Cement 
(Concrete) Materials Contract. Castillo-Cullather seconded the 
motion. The motion passed.  Contract award approved. 

 Award Class ‘A’ 
Portland Cement 
(Concrete) Materials 
Contract 
 

Wason explains that the City has requested proposals to upgrade 
various City facilities.  Part of the request was for LED upgrades 
to Walnut Street and Morton Street Parking Garages, which are 
the only facilities being addressed in this report.  The cost is for 
the purchase of the lights only, installation will be completed by 
City staff in both garages.  This work will be completed contingent 
upon funding by the RDC. Bids were received from ECO Parking 
Lights and Huston Electric. Based on the bid prices, staff 
recommends going with ECO Parking Lights based on bid price 
and past working relationships. 

Castillo- Cullather asked when they anticipate installation of the 
lights after purchasing. 

Wason said after approval, installation should take place in two to 
three weeks based on delivery times. 

Castillo-Cullather made a motion Award LED Lighting Upgrade 
Materials Contract for Morton And Walnut Street Garages. 
Boatman seconded the motion. The motion passed. Contract award 
approved. 

  
Award LED Lighting 
Upgrade Materials 
Contract for Morton 
And Walnut Street 
Garages 
 



BPW 3-22-16 Page 10 
 
 

Wason explained that in order to maintain the quality of City 
Facilities, Department of Public Works wishes to enter into an 
agreement with Cummins Crosspoint, LLC to perform planned 
maintenance of emergency power generation equipment for many 
of Public Works’ facilities. They have used Cummins in the past. 
The amount this year is slightly less than last year. They are the 
provider of the products and can maintain the equipment best and 
the city has had a great working experience with the company. 
Staff recommends the Board to approve the maintenance service 
agreement with Cummins Crosspoint, LLC not to exceed amount 
of $7,810.52.  

Boatman asked if we have considered doing a longer term 
agreement as opposed to an annual one. 

Wason said we have not, and we have done the annual in the past 
as this is a service contract that is brought to the board each year. 
This contract does not have an extension option. 

Boatman made a motion to Approve Emergency Generators 
Maintenance Services Agreement with Cummins Crosspoint for 
City Facilities. Castillo-Cullather seconded the motion. The 
motion passed.  Agreement approved. 

  
Approve Emergency 
Generators 
Maintenance 
Services Agreement 
with Cummins 
Crosspoint for City 
Facilities 
 

Matt Smethurst of Planning and Transportation explains that 
Change Order #1 consists of claims for additional work 
performed, a request to perform additional work, and deductions 
from the contract. Three claims were submitted by the contractor 
for additional work performed on the contract per direction from 
City staff.  All three items were the result of unforeseen conditions 
on the project site.  The total of the three claims is $6,309.00. 

The City would like to replace and refurbish existing signage for 
the Twin Lakes Sports Complex.  A quote was obtained from the 
contractor to perform this work.  The requested work would be an 
additional $16,604.00. Signage is identified on a provided map. 
There are two deductions to the contract.  The first deduct is for 
wood rail fencing that will not be installed.  The fencing was part 
of the original contract, but after further consideration, Staff 
decided to not have the fencing installed.  The second deduct is for 
Class X excavation.  12 cubic yards of Class X excavation was 
built into the contract for the installation of the traffic signal.  The 
Class X excavation was not needed for the installation of the 
traffic signal, resulting in a deduction of $7,980.00. The original 
contract amount for the project was $1,338,700.00.  Change Order 
#1 will result in a net deduction of $11,932.00 to the contract. This 
project is TIF funded. The redevelopment commission has already 
approved this deduction. Staff has reviewed the proposed change 
order and recommends approval of Change Order #1 for the West 
Bloomfield Road Sidepath, Intersection, and Signal Improvements 
Project. 

Wason added during the work session, the process for change 
orders was discussed in order to avoid delaying projects in a 
significant way, and Public Works is working with the BPW to 
develop language to avoid this issue. 

Cox Deckard asked for a description of the signs. 

Smethurst explained the layout and design of each of the new sign. 

Boatman asked what kind of markup is allowed to be placed on 
the signs by the contractor. 

  
Approve Change 
Order #1 for the W. 
Bloomfield Road 
Sidepath Project 



BPW 3-22-16 Page 11 
 
 

Smethurst said they allow for a 5% markup. 

Boatman asked when the contractor will complete the work. 

Smethurst said everything should be completed by the end of the 
summer. He explained the layout of the new side path and its 
involvement in the new I-69 project. 

Wason explained the reasoning to adding more pedestrian 
facilities in this area and its positive impact on the area. 

Cox Deckard asked Smethurst to explain the reason we are not 
doing the pedestrian fence rail in this project. 

Smethurst said is not required per safety codes, and a city engineer 
determined it was not necessary. 

Wason added that the Parks and Recreation Department 
approached Public Works to add the signs as it is the most 
efficient and fastest way to place the signs in the area while 
construction continues. The administration did approve of this 
change. 

Castillo-Cullather made a motion to approve Change Order #1 for 
the W. Bloomfield Road Side path Project. Boatman seconded the 
motion. The motion passed.  Change order approved. 

Wason explained the staff report discusses seating and 
merchandise encroachment permits for outdoor dining and 
merchandisers in the public right of way. He explained the process 
for approval. There are 20 renewals of these permits.  

Boatman asked if dining needs to be involved to require a permit. 

Wason said no, it could simply be a designated place of 
congregation or selling clothing outside of a storefront as well. 

Castillo-Cullather asks if we usually get these permits all at this 
time of year. 

Wason explained that we have so many at once because these are 
reviewed on a case by case basis, and it is easier to match up these 
multiple permits at once from a workflow perspective. 

Cox Deckard asked if staff reaches out to establishments to inform 
of a required renewal. 

Wason said a letter is sent out 4-6 weeks in advance. There is a fee 
of $100/year. 

Wason thanked the Street Department for cleaning tremendously 
during Spring Break and for helping out the sanitation department 
during a time of high illness. 

Boatman asked when yard waste will resume. 

Wason said it will resume on April 1st on your recycling day. 

  
STAFF REPORTS & 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
  

Boatman motions for approval of payroll period beginning March 
18th for the amount of $359,498.48. Castillo- Cullather seconds. 
Motion passes. 

 PAYROLL CLAIMS 



BPW 3-22-16 Page 12 
 
 

 
  

Wason explained there are more detailed descriptions of the 
claims to better explain what the claims are for and who is using 
them. 

Wason addressed larger claims, including payments made to: the 
Monroe County Energy Challenge, the Indiana Associations and 
Cities Health Trust, IU Woodlawn Avenue Railroad Crossing 
project.  

Cox Deckard inquired about purchases made by the Arts 
Commission on the old Lotus building. 

Wason explained that there was a contractual obligation to make 
certain improvements on the building, but it should be one of the 
last payments made by the city. It was seen as an improvement on 
government facilities. 

Castillo-Cullather and Cox Deckard commended staff for 
improvements in the description of the claims. 

Boatman acknowledged that claims are higher due to the health 
insurance claims. 

Castillo-Cullather moved to approve claims in the amount of 
$1,096,508.73. Boatman seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed.  Claims approved. 

 APPROVAL OF 
CLAIMS 

 
  

Cox Deckard called for adjournment. Meeting adjourned 7:18 pm 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
Accepted by: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Kyla Cox Cox Deckard, President  
 
___________________________________________ 
Kelly Boatman, Vice-president 
 
___________________________________________ 
Melanie Castillo-Cullather, Secretary 
 
 
Date:      Attest to: 
 


